City of 7
Parchment

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION
October 19, 2020 - Virtual
7P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan III
Vice-Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans
Commissioner Richard Bagley Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy
Officers
City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard
City Attorney Robert Soltis
City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call

3. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2020

4. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval
5. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda

If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:
e State your name and address for the records

You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments

Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk

Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

1



6. Consent Agenda
Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
1. Warrant No. 1423 — approve
ii. Monthly Financial Statement — receive
iii. Quarterly Investment Report — receive
iv. Credit Card Statement - approve

7. Unfinished Business
A. Kal Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement, Chief O’Breiter — approve
B. Master Plan Distribution to the Public - approve

8. New Business
A. Interlocal Agreement for Kal Co. to Approve the Designated Assessor - approve

9. Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda
Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.

10. Mayor and Commissioner Comments

11. City Manager Comments

12. Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON
MONDAY OCTOBER 5, 2020.

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order via Zoom (online due to Coronavirus shutdown) at 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan, Vice Mayor Jordan, Commissioners Bagley, Evans, Fooy, and Madaras. City Manager
Stoddard, City Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent: Commissioner Emmons.

Minutes

Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Fooy to approve the minutes of the September 21, 2020 Regular
Meeting. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Emmons.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
Add 8F. Emergency Telephone Pole purchase, and 8G. Parchment High School Parade. Moved by Commissioner Bagley,
supported by Commissioner Evans to accept the changes. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Emmons.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
None.

Consent Agenda

A, Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to receive the consent agenda items. Roll call
vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.

Nays: None.

Absent: Emmons.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business

A. Resignation letter from Commissioner Chester Emmons — receive. Mayor Britigan read Commissioner Emmons’
resignation letter, noting it was graciously submitted and effective immediately. It was noted that Chester’s work schedule
has prevented him from fulfilling his duties. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Evans to accept the
resignation effective immediately. Motion Carried.

Discussion ensued regarding how to fill the vacant seat, especially since Michigan law supercedes our charter regarding when
to hold an election. Attorney Soltis noted that the Commission must appoint someone within 45 days. Commissioner Evans
reminded all about how she came to the body, and stated that she thinks the Commission should do the same. Mayor Britigan
noted that appointing a commissioner stays within the framework described, and allows receiving letters of interest and an
interview process. Moved by Commissioner Evans supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to accept letters of interest from the
public until 5 pm October 26, 2020 for the purpose of appointing someone to complete Commissioner Emmons’ term. Roll
call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.

Abstain: None.



Minutes of the October 5, 2020 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 3

Motion Carried 6-0.

B. MEMAC Agreement with Emergency Management — approve. City Manager Stoddard reminded commissioners of
a presentation by the County Emergency Operations center at a January meeting where they explained about the agreement.
In the past, the City of Parchment has been the only jurisdiction in the County who was not a party to it. Since January,
FEMA and the State of Michigan have worked out and approved their differences, resulting in the agreement before the
commission today. Adopting the agreement allows the city to leverage resources in times of crisis. Moved by Commissioner
Bagley, supported by Commissioner Madaras to adopt the MEMAC Agreement with Emergency Management and authorize
the Mayor to sign the document. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain; None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

C. Redevelopment Ready Community Resolution - approve. City Manager Stoddard explained that this action is not
just a piece of paper, it makes the City eligible for grants from the MEDC. She noted that she, Cheryl Lyon-Jenness, and
Sandy Bliesener all completed required training in order to take advantage of grant opportunities such as for projects within
the mill. She mentioned that these are not large dollar grants but they require partnering within communities to show the
City’s desire to move forward. Moved by Commissioner Fooy, supported by Commissioner Evans to approve the
Redevelopment Ready Community Resolution as written and authorize the mayor to sign. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

D. Access Agreement to the Waste Water Treatment Property — approve. This agreement was written by Attorney
Soltis in order to allow clean up of the property adjacent to the River which is an EPA Superfund Site. Moved by Vice Mayor
Jordan, supported by Commissioner Fooy to approve the access agreement as written and authorize the Mayor to sign the
document. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

E. Kalamazoo County Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement - approve. City Manager Stoddard explained that Fire
Chief Obreiter brought this to her, basically stating that this agreement goes back to the 1980°s and *90’s in order to have a
unified response for residents. Commissioner Evans noted that according to the firefighters, Life EMS has the best response
times. Commissioners requested Chief Obreiter to attend the next meeting to answer questions. Moved by Vice Mayor
Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to table the agreement until answers can be supplied by the Chief.
Commissioner Fooy stated he wanted to take care of this now, not table it. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: Fooy.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-1.

F. Emergency Telephone Pole Purchase — approve. City Manager Stoddard explained about how repeated recent
damage to a traffic light at Riverview and Parchmount is the result of the related pole leaning toward the street. DPW
Superintendent Wolthuis locked into the issue and relayed that the pole cannot be anchored any longer and replacement is
urgent. He checked around, found out that the pole is the City’s (not Consumers or AT&T) and thus our responsibility to
replace it. The cost is $14,475. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Fooy to approve the purchase of
the pole and authorize the City Manager to execute all documents related to the matter as well as to seek reimbursements
from responsible parties. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.

Nays: None.



Minutes of the October 5, 2020 City of Parchment Commission Page 3 of 3

10.

11.

12.

Absent: None.
Abstain: None.
Motion Carried 6-0.

G. Parchment High School Parade request — approve. Student Council administrator Jodi McManus submitted the
request in the hope that the group could safely and effectively conduct a parade. She mentioned that there were still many
steps to get full approval but this was her first hurdle. Commissioner Madaras asked who would pay for costs related to
Police and Fire presence and City Manager Stoddard replied that the Student Council is responsible. Moved by
Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the parade request as presented, and following
restrictions within any existing Executive Order or Covid-related guidance by the state. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

Citizen Comments
Mike Conner, 1150 Parchmount, asked about the City’s insurance policy and why staff doesn’t know all of the coverage from
memory.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Bagley asked for an update on the Scottish Festival, the Bellisle lot, and ordinance reports. City Manager
Stoddard noted that updates for all would be within the week.

Vice Mayor Jordan asked about follow up from Chief Ergang regarding ticket breakdown. City Manager Stoddard
apologized saying she thought she had sent them, and would resend.

Mayor Britigan noted that the Michigan Strategic Fund awarded Act 381 work plan monies to LC Howard to help reimburse
them for the project on the mill site. He then reported that the budget passed for the State of Michigan included money for
the engineering costs for the 131 Business loop interchange. The Mayor then gave a presentation regarding the Gull Road/G
Avenue roundabout — work to begin in June 2021. Renderings are available on the KATS website. He then said that he’s
sure the City Manager will keep everyone updated on any Open Meetings Act news.

City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard noted that the County health officer declared an “Epidemic Order” and to maintain current practices —
physical distancing, mask wearing, etc. She invited all who had questions or concerns to call to discuss with her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Madaras and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 8:33 p.m.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



Check # Date
MERCANTILE Checks

36091
36092
36093
36095
36096
36097
36098
36099
36100
36101
36102
36103
36104
36105
36106
36107
36108
36109
36110

10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020
10/13/2020

City of Parchment

Check Register Report
Warrant 1423

Vendor Name

IVAN BLANCO

CINTAS

CLARK TECHNICAL SERVICES
CONSUMERS ENERGY

DEYOUNG LANDSCAPE SERVICE
ENGINEERED PROTECTION SYSTEMS
FORD, KRIEKARD, SOLTIS & WISE
KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHOR
KALAMAZOO OIL CO.

KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP

MICHIGAN ELECTION RESOURCES
PREIN & NEWHOF

PURITY CYLINDER GASES, INC.
REPUBLIC SERVICES #249
RIETH-RILEY CONSTRUCTION CO.
SEVERANCE ELECTRIC CO INC

KARA SMITH

NANCY STODDARD

SHANNON STUTZ

Check Description

Deposit Refund & Cancellation
Uniform Rental & Towels
Computer Support - September
Monthly citywide energy use
Treatment #5 - Stage

Water Treatment to 1/31/21
Police/General Matters - September
Prop Maint Inspec-421 N Riverv
Fuel Charges 9/1 to 9/15/2020
Police/Fire Contract-3rd Q
Election Supplies

SAW Grant thru 09/26/20

1/4 ly Cylinder Rental

DPW - October

Hot Mix for Pot Holes

Repair Damage signal-Parchmount/Rivervi

Mileage (Ordinance & Election)
Zoom-On Line Mtg
Mileage-July, Aug, Sept.

Amount

350.00
245.50
495.00
21717
166.00
181.41
1,631.25
55.00
79.76
35,747.61
174.80
51,903.75
47.78
353.75
78.57
254.00
170.54
31.78
100.69



s1ebpng |euiBuQ g papuawiwy LA pue gL 'aLin pebessay Buisn

L0'Le 0L€8¥'8 2y 250'92 Z¥15092 00'000'F21 00°000'%21 awiL Ind - loiked 00020
uoiesiuwpyY 000007 Ade@
eeLL yrara A LST6Y0T 15Z6Y'02 00005'9Z 00°005'92 anesiba
000 000 000 000 00°00€ 00°00€ SNOBUE|IROSIN 00056
0Z2'65 000 LOFOL'} LOB0L'} 00000'C 000002 Buystiang g Bunuiid 000°006
000 000 000 000 00000C 0070002 uonnquiucy) Buliessepm 100089
00°€L 000 00'oel 000el 00'000°} 00°000'} uonowold AHUNWWoD 000’088
000 000 000 000 00°005°} 00°005°} sanq g sdiysisquiajy 000 0E8
GE'GS1 000LL 5095191 G0'951'9L 00°00%°01 00°00¥01 ‘MBS |BNIOBNUOD/BUOISSBI0Id 000008
gz0clL 08'%LL 8Ly c8'Le 00004 00004 sa|/ddng Bupesado 000°0t.
8C'y TV 99'8 95'8 00002 00°00¢ BIBJIPSN 000'¢CL
8L'0 A 660 650 00°00¢ 00°00€ uolesuadwog s SoM 00002,
99°¢ 00'le 8G°9¢ 8G°9¢ 00°000°} 00°000°L Aunoag [eioog 000'GLL
0e'le 00°005 00GLE'T 006LE'E 00°001°2 000012 awl] Wed - lovhed 000°€0.
aneisibal 000001 deq
sainjipuadx3
0F'19 G9'6//'6 1£082'/€8 1£'082°L68 00'6ZL'€9E'L  00'GTL'E9E'L sanuanoy
0v'L9 G8'6..°6 1£082°2€8 1£082'/¢8 00'GZL'€9¢'L  00°6Z2'€9E’t 000000 3de@
000 000 9.0 9.0 000 000 Hoys g J8AQ sksodag 000'969
9L'vel IAR 09'012°02 09°0L2'0Z 00°00¢'91 00'002'9L SNOBUE|IBOSINL 000 #69
000 000 000 000 0010001k} 00°000°L¥L pesyIaAQ 10} Juswasinquizy 000'089
vz'0 Z6'G 66'6 66'6 00°00Z'% 00002y siususaaul uosalsidl 000'+99
v oL £8'vic ¥SLGL §9°16L 00002'L 00002, Saul4ouell 000299
000 00°005'2 00'005°2 00°00S'2 000 000 $1988Y paxl4 Jo 8[eS 000'6H9
00°590°} 000 00'G2E's 00'6ZE'S 00005 00008 palopuay sa0ines Joj sabieyd 000289
8E'LL 000 0000822 0000822 00'00t'00¢ 00'00¥'002 Xe| sajeg ajels 000'G.S
000 000 00'628'8 00'628'8 000 000 Buipund esepa4 J9Y0 000'82S
£8've 0564 80vLE LY 80VLE LY 00'009'8L 1 00°009'8L} SUCNI9I0] BISeM PIOS 000 ¥St
000 000 000 000 000042 000042 $934 uollealnsy Q00 ey
L1'ee 000 vLZee'e r1'Z8E'E 00°009't} 000091 $984 UOISIABIQED 0002SY
9,28 0009 £E'6LL L £€6442 00'00%'6 00°00%'6 $994 pue 9suadlT 000'LSY
9r'LL 88199 BY'GEY L) 6FGEY 2L 00°00t'¥2 00°00%'t¢ $884 UONDSIIC] %1 000'8FY
17'e9 95°510'L 95'G10°) 95'GL0'} 00009} 00°009°} sexe | uo fyeusd 000°Gry
000 000 000 000 00000221 00000221 X2] 8leys qeis Ajunwwog (2007 000 Ly
£0°001 000 §L290'e GL'ZI0'E 00°090'¢ 00°090°¢ saljijioe [eyisnpul - sexe | 000°'G0%
0000l 000 £2'%98°269 £2%98'269 00'698'/69 00'G98°269 anuaray Xel 000'w0F
000°000 3deq
sanuanay
0NN TYd3N3O - LOL -pund
196png jo 196png [enuuy  186png jenuuy
o, 1B3 A JUSLINYD [enioy Al AD [ENPY 1D AD [BNY QLA AD pspuswy A9 [eubug A9 1202/0£/9 01 0202/1/L ALY AD  020Z/0E/6 O 0Z0¢!LIL \OLA AD
0202/0£/6 01 0202/1/L QLD AD  0Z0Z/0E/6 01 0Z02/1/6 QLN AD
We 616 Juswydied jo Ao
0¢0Z/9L/01
| :ebed 020z '0g dag

140d3Y 3HNLIANIAXIANNIATY



s196png [2uIBuQ *§ popUSWIWLY (1L A PUB QLD ‘aLin paBeisny Bussn,

000 000 000 000 00°000°L 00°000'} saliddng soueusjulely g ieday 000'6.L
8.¢ 000 Gl/2 Gll2 00000} 00°000'} IO & 8uljose) 000'9t2
000 000 000 000 00°000'G 00'000'G soyddng Bupesado 000°0%L
il 000°9¢e deq
02'5¢ 69'€09°LE 0F'8LL°L6 0¥'8LL16 00'00%'08€ 00°00%'08€ a0ljod
TATA 00'€69'62 ST Yer'e6 rATARY 00'005'95€ 00'006'95¢ "AIBS [BNICEAQUOT)/[BUOCISSBJO0Id 000'008
8C'6 8C'6 8C'6 8¢'6 00001 00001 2IB2IP3 000'¢cs
A €212z} 6L°G99°E 61'699°¢ 00°005'€L 00005'€L 98119y - 3oueInsu| [BIASOH 000'612
199 89°6¢ 89'6€ 89'6¢ 00009 00009 Aunosg [B100S 000°G)L
099 00°0¥9 00'0%9 00°0F9 00°00.'6 00°00.'6 awi] ped - loifed 000°€02
adljed 000°00¢ ¥dag
¥6'Le G2'906'L SL8LY'S GL8LY'S 00004V 00002'F2 sa0luas [ebia
64'C SZlel 08°¢9¢ 09292 00°00%'6 00'00¥'6 SIojel 90110d-A3UI0RY 000208
02°¢g 00624} GC'951L'G G29651'S 00°00€'S} 00°00€'S1 [BJBUSS) - ABUIONY 000 LOY
saoluag [eBa 00001z Weg
¥L'0¢ 80°GLE'2e 18'186'9L 18'186'92 00°00L°L4€ 00°00L'L4E uonesiviwpy
£eolL 6,88/ 6.°881C 6.'88LC 0000042 00000'22 [enden 000°046
000 000 000 000 00°005'2 00°006'2 siopeAUOY IR 3 JIRdaY 000°0S6
69°€C #0'9¢¢ ¢1'566 ¢1'566 00002 00002'v saniln 000°0¢6
lg'ee 000 05°244') 0S°ZLy'} 00009'9 00'009'9 $puog g 8oueInsu| 000'0L6
0c'L 000 1A 9ece 000042 000042 Buysiand g Bunuud 000°006
£rs 000 8¢'SLe 8¢'Sle 00002 00'002't Burutel) g seimusu| 000 098
0c'6¢ 65°C.LS L2201 LLZO0LT 000022 00'002'L suoledUNWWOY 000058
6lle 05'9%¢ 05'L9¢ 057192 00°002'} 00°002'} sanq g sdiyssaqualN 000068
1618 000 8LLY8'Y 8L1¥8'y 0000%'6 00'00%'6 saoluag Jeindwo) 000508
£6'2¢ 84'6/9 88'LEL’ | 881EL°1 00'002'9 00'002'9 "ABg [ENjORJUOD/[BUCISSBl0d 000008
B¢y 000 £1'G8 £/°68 00°000'2 000002 saddng soueusiueN B seday 000°G/L
6091 ¥0'60€ 68204 68204 00°00%'¥ 00°00%'y sajddng Bugelado 000 0%L
Le0 00009 8r'88z’L 8y'88Z'L 00002°¢ 00002°¢ abieisod 000'0¢2
000 000 000 000 00'008'6 00'008'6 Hjsusg Juswaaey YINDI 000'v2L
5961 42191 L8018 18016 00009 00009°C 2IB2P3N 000'CCL
b8l 00°4¢ ch'eel 45145 00004 00004 uonesuadwo) sa%ic 000024
919 ¥9'€08'7 £1°¢/¢'8 £L7.€'8 00000'2e 00'000¢E ucisuad 000'8LL
¢0'se 000 LLGEY') LLGEY') 00001y 00°00L'Y ||qRonpaq aduelinsu| LO0'9l L
¥L'e 20910 y8'¥S6°LL yevS6'LL 00'000'6G 00'000°5S BouRINsU| 8)17/eNdsoH 000912
896 92'169 9G'¥81'C 95'%81'Z 000011 0000411 Runoag eog 000°GLL
ee'le Si'e08'e 852186 8GZ18'6 000009 00°000'9% auwi| Led - [loifed 000°€0Z
uonelsiuWpY 0007002 deq
sainypuadx3
ONN4 TYH3N3O - L0} pund
196png jo jobipng jenuuy  186png |enuuy
9, Jes A Juauny) lenioy Al AD [eNAY 1D AD [BMOY QLA AD pepuawy AD [eubup AD 1202/0E/9 01 020¢/1/L "ALY AD  02OZI0E/6 O 020E/L/L \ALA AD
0202/0€/6 91 0202/L/2 -0LD AD 0Z0Z/0E/6 O 0202/1/6 -OLN AD
we gl:6 Juawyased jo Aun
0c0z/9L/oL
¢ abed 0202 ‘0¢ ¥deg

140434 FUNLIANIdXIANNIATY



sjebpng (euiBug g pspualuwy QLA Pue QLD ‘LN pabeiany Buisn ,

0'he M0ce £e2el £E /L 00°005°€ 00°005'€ Aunoag [elwos 000'GLL
06'¢e 000 0682 0/6827 0000001 0000001 BWI| ed - loiked 000°€02
16'LL 80'98G'C L¥'el9'6 7’296 00°000'¥S 00°000'%S awi] |In4 - loiked 000202

aInyng g uoNes1oay ‘sed 000'16. deg

88°0¢ gL'g60'L G9616'GL GO'6L6'GL 00°008'€9€ 00'008'€9¢ $80IM85 Dllqnd
ooe 6271 20°48 2029 00°006°L 00°006'L asuadx3 1saisiu] 000666
1992 £6'695°} BS'E89'Y 6G'E89'Y 0000921 00°009'ZL ledipund-jusiiansy 1980 000166
80'8¢ GLgse GZ'L90'e GZ190'e 00°006°0} 00°006'0L sicjpejuUOYule B Jleday 000°0E6
6¢°L¢ 7002 857962 86/96'/ 0000262 0000262 Bupybinieans 000'926
88yl 7962 99°6VZ'L 99°6YZ | 00°00¥'8 00°00%'8 saymn 000°0Z6
44 000 008LE"} 001"} 00°00L'G 00°004'G spuog g 8oueInsu| 000°0L6
000 000 000 000 00008 00009 uoljowold Aunwwod 000088
000 000 000 000 00°00¢ 00'00¢ Bujuiel | g semisu| 000098
9991 000 96'6¥L 96°'6¥1 00006 00°006 suofeauNwwod 000058
9/°G¢ 92'691 0L2LL 0L211 00000 00000°¢ [EJUSY WLOJUN 000'S1L8
reolL 000 616618 6166181 00000011 00°000°0LL safiley) uonos||od ysigany 000°0L8
90'Se 0008 04'6¢e 06°Gee 00'006 00'006 "Mag |enoeauo)/eucIssalold 000008
8lL'L- 000 88°G- 89'¢- 00°005 00°009 salddng Aiajes 000°08.
¥lze TASA LS GE6RLL GEBYL'L 00'006'L 000062 sa||ddng soueuajuleyy g Jledsy 000'GL.
6511 88'6E 0898y 08'98% 00002y 00002t IO g suljoses) 00097,
000 000 000 000 00'005 00008 salddng Buyeisdo 000°0%./
69'9Z 9z's0L 0g'0ce 0g0ze 0000Z't 00°00Z'} 8IedIpsiNl 000°2CL
0£'9¢ 11'1ee £6'2%. £5°LpL 000082 00°008'Z uoljesusdog sJaoM 000022
cLor €2122'L 61°699'¢ 61°G99'c 00°000'6 000006 se8laY - BoURINSU| [BIASOH 000°6L.
¢sel 20Z6s'L ¥E'625' Y ¥E'6ZS'Y 00°006'cE 00°005'cE uoisusd 000'gLL
LIL8 000 187689} 186891 000007 00°000'2 8|qrionpaq souednsu| L00'9L.L
G9'6¢ 8G'8K.'T 192728 18'LpL'8 0000662 00°005'62 souBINSU| BJ/IBIASOH 000°9L/
§$6'/¢ 86°6F 85'69€'L 85'69¢') 00°006't 00°006' funoeg [eog 000°G1.
L6l L8TL6Y 9,'%v0'Gl 9Lvk0'G1 0000582 00°005'82 awi] [Ind - loiked 000202

S80INIS 21IaNd 000°0%y 1daq

L8l 90'192'9 6€'CET'2C 6E'EET'TT 00°008°0Z} 0000802} all4
000 000 000 000 0000002 00°000'02 [ended 000046
619 000 0669 0669 00°005°0L 00'005'01 siojoenuog IRl 3 JIeday 000056
68°LL Gy oLl €18y £Lesy 000042 000042 SaMBN 000026
69'8¢ 000 00'865'C 00866 00°00€'6 00°00¢'6 spuog g sourinsu| 000°016
evilL 19699 196 L961L 00°00¢'y 00'00E'Y SuoRedUNWWO) 000°058
00'Ge 00'648'G 0052291 0052291 0000699 00°006'99 "Mag [enjoelUOT/euoISSajold 000'008
000 000 000 000 00004 0000} sayddng Alajes 000082

aid 000'9g¢ 1dag
sainjipuadxy

aNN4 TvH3NA9 - 101 :pund
1ebpng jo 196png [enuuy  196png [enuuy

o Jea\ alng [BnoY QLN AD [BMOY LD AD [ENoY QLA AD papusiy A [eulBuo AD 1Z0ZI0E/9 ) 0Z0Z/L/L }OLY AD  0Z0Z/0S/6 O 0Z0Z/LIL ‘LA AD

0202/0E/6 0} 0Z0z/L/2 :ALD AD 0Z0Z/0E/6 O 0Z02/L/6 :LN AD

We g6
0coe/oL/oL
¢ abed

0202 ‘0t 1das
1¥0d3y FUNLIANIIXI/ANNTATY

Juswyaled jo Ao



sjabpng [eutBuo  papusWWY JLA PUE LD ‘AL pabeleny Buisn ,

8E'¢e 00'G09°G8 8Y'268'9¢E 8 268'92¢ 00°009'09%'L  00'009'09F'L sainyipusadx3
09l 67'€00'8 162.0'82 1622082 0000€'eL} 0000€'¢LL aInyng B uoljealdsy ‘siied
000 000 000 000 00°000°0} 00'000°01 lended 000°046
89°€eC 009922 00'2€9'9 002£9'9 00°000'82Z 00'000'8C siopeue B B Ieday 000'0£6
26'8l vLeve 82'982°| 82°98¢'L 000089 000089 SolN 000026
L1192 000 00629} 006/9°L 000079 00'00%'9 Spuog g 8dueInNsul 000'0L6
000 000 000 000 00°00% 00'00% sa|ddng fajes 000'08/
G896 000 £6°/89 £6°/8S 00°00%7°0L 00'00¥'0L salddng soueusiuigly g Jleday 000'GLL
£9'€C 88'6¢ G0'8EY 50'8¢9 000042 000042 110 g Buljose 000'9FL
Gs'Le £9'L8 rell cvell 00008 00008 2IedPsN (000'¢e.L
v.'8¢ aLEL ClLEY (A% 00°005'L 00005’} uonesuadwog) sJaXIopM 000024
glel £6'LLLL FLATAVES TZATAIR 00°000'¢2 00°000'¢2 uoisuad 000814
000 000 000 000 00°000'} 00°000'} S|qonpaq souelnsu| 1009l L
92’9 gy'ese 9.°G¢6 9/°G26 00°008'vL 00008t 2aueJnsu| ayT/lendseH 00091/
ainjng g uonesinsy ‘syed 00015, deg
sainjipusdx3
ANN4 TYY3NID - L0L pund
196png jo 1ebpng |enuuy  186png [enuuy
o, 1B3 A JUaLIN) [enoy aliN AD [BN1OY 41D AD BNy QLA AD papuswy A0 [eulbug A9 1202/0€/9 01 0202/1/L ALY AD  0COZ/0E/6 O 020¢!L/L “ALA AD
0Z02/0€/6 01 020/L/L “QLD AD  0202/0€/6 O 0Z02/1/6 ‘LN AD
uegLp Jswyoled jo Ao
0¢0¢/9L/01L
y :abed 0202 ‘0¢ ¥dag

140d34 3HNLIANIdXI/ANNIAIY



s196png [euIBO B PapuBWWY LA PUB 01D 'GLIN paBesany Buisn ,

6y clh sryL CL66C ¢L'662 00°00%'2 00°00K' 80UeINsu| 8)(//eNdsoH 000'9LL
6691 ¥6'L¢ €678 £6'18 00005 00005 Aunoag epos 00061,
(rAVA 8’651 16'E6E'L 16'€6E') 00°00L'8 000018 awl] [Ind - lloiAed 000°Z0L

souBUSIUIRI JBJUIM 000'8.F 1d8Q

L0l 191EL°) 69'896'C G8'896'C 0000422 0000422 SSIMBSG Vel |
6E°El 98'8€6 B6'EEY'L 66°€E9'L 00'002'Z} 00°002'21 siopenuoulely g iedey 000056
000 000 000 000 00 00¥°e 00°00¥'C salddng soueusjule 3 Jeday 000°6//
000 000 000 000 00005 007005 10 & 8UllosED 000°9%L
0601 GL'G 0601 06°0L 00001 00001 aleapey 000°¢cL
8.6l ov've e0'ls el 00°05% 00°0SY uojesusdwog sJsYIopM 00002,
€8 8¢'10L Le'6he LE6¥e 00°000'¢ 00°000°¢ uoisuad 00081
000 000 000 000 00001 00°00L a|quonps(Q soueInsU| LO0'9L.L
0y'ol 8¢ GZ'/81 G’ /81 00'008'} 00'008'} 80UBINSU| BYT/BNISOH 000'9L/
¢yolL oLee 889 88'9¥ 00'0Sy 00'0S¥ Anoeg 21005 000'GLL
8vLL 09¢9¢ 6’69/ 6¥'69. 0000£'9 000049 8uIL In4 - loiked 000204

S80IMBS OYJeIL 0005y 1deg

g0'LL 01'509 9£'925°C 9¢'925°C 0000622 00°006°CZ SoueUsjUlE SUNNOY
£eal 000 000611 00°0GL'} 00°005'2 00°005°2 siopenuon el g Jedsy 000°0£6
000 000 000 000 000022 00°002°C sal|ddng eoueuBuIRly 3 Jleday 000°G./
000 000 000 000 00°00€ 00°00¢ 10 8 duljoses) 0009,
eell 128 eeLl gl 0oool 00°001 2IedIpalyl 000¢C.L
¢e9l 96'vC 66'CL 66'¢L 0005k 00°05¥ uoljesuadiuog siaopM 000022
858 £0°201 6¥'25¢ 6¥'25¢ 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ uoisusd 0008l
000 000 000 000 00001 00°001 g|qronpa( soueInsu| 1009l L
Ly oL 0EvL L&281 1e281 00°008'} 00°008'} 8OUBINSU| BYI/[BHASOH 000°0L2
280l a9'ee 69'8% 69'8F 00°0S¥ 00057 Aunoeg [eios 000612
Wil ¢6'0.€ G686/ G686 00°000°Z 0070002 sl [Ind - leiked 000202

30UBUBIUIB BUNNOY (00 €9y Hdeg

08'66 000 6Y6LY0L 67'6.701 00°005°0L 00°005°0L uonongsuoy
08'66 000 6762701 BF'6L501 0000501 0000501 [ended 000°0.6

uonanisuoy OO0’ Sy deq
sainypuadx3
62°0¢€ 1£'966'62 A4 YA 2C6.2'08 00°00£'¢9L 00°00€'€91 $aNUaA3Y

620 1£'966'62 TCBLT0G 22612'05 00°00£°c9lL 00°00£'€91 000°000 3dsQ
62708 1£°966'62 22'6.2'05 22'6.2'0G 00°00€°¢9L 00°00€'¢9l LG 1oV - sjueln) slelS 000 9rS

000000 3daq
sonuanay

aNN4 13391S HOrv - ¢0¢ pund
1ebpng jo 186png |lenuuy  186png [enuuy

% Jea A Jualng [emay aLiN AD [endY 1o AD [eMOY LA AD papuswy AD [euiblio AD 120Z/0E/9 OV 002!/ \ALY AD  0202/0E/6 01 020e/LL {ALA AD

0¢0Z/0E/6 0 0Z02/L/L }ALD AD  0Z0Z/0¢/6 O 0202/1/6 :dLN AD

We 66
0202/91/0L
G :afed

0202 '0¢ 1deg
L1H0d3d FUNLIANIAXIANNIATY

Juawyoled jo Ao



sjabpng |

I6uQ % papusliwy QLA pue QLD ‘AL pabeieay Buisn ,

SLLL 08°209°C 0€'8£6'81 0£'8£6'81 00°689°901 00'$89'001 sainypuadx3
€8¢ 6E0¢EL 79675 79'6¥S 00°0v¥'61 00°0vt'6L uonensiuwpy
000 000 000 000 00°000'L} 00'000'LL peayJanQ aaelsSIUIWPY 000°096
Gg'ie ve'l 54 (594 0002 0002 alealpaly 000222
Ga'eol 96°G LLOZ L0 00°0¢ 000¢ uoijesusduwio) sIaMopM 00002,
18711 L'6e 18'98 1898 00005 00009 uoisuad 000'¢LL
1681 810 SrLLL criLL 00009 00009 8ouBINSU B)eNdSOH 000'9Ls
9v'8l ¥es gl 9’8l 00001 00°00L funoag [B100S 000'GLL
99'G¢ 9588 98°20¢ 98'20€ 00002t 00°002°} awi] [Ind - loiked 000°'Z0Z
uonensiupy 00028 1deg
€76 $9'GEL 9WBELYE 9ELY'T 00'6¥1'92 006v192 S0uBUBIUIBA JAUIAA
000 000 000 000 . 00'006'6 00'006'6 Yes 000'eGL
996} 000 G6'9.1 G6'9L1 00°006 00°006 IO 8 auljoses Q00'9Y.
259l €59 (8’6l c8'6l 00021 000¢k 31PN 000°¢CL
1821 Z60¢ L8'€6 18°E6 00°6Z8 00°6es uopesuadwon sJ8YI0M 000°0Z4
§8'6 0e'9¢1 9Lv¥E 9L'¥¥E 00005 00°00S'¢ uoisusd Q00812
000 000 000 000 00002 0000 8|qronpaq soueinsu| 100’91 L
S0UBUSJUIE JBIUIM 000°8/F 1dsQ
sainypuadx3
ONN4 13341S HOrvn -Z0g -pund
196png jo 19Bpng [enuuy 1eBpng [enuuy
o, 1B3 A JUaLN) [BNOY LN AD [BNIDY Q1D AD [BNOY QLA AD papuswy AD  Jewbup AD 1202/0€/9 ©) 0Z0¢/}L :ALY AD  020T/0€/6 91 020T/L/L \ALA AD
020¢/0¢£/6 01 020¢/L/L :QLD AD 020Z/0€/6 O 020¢/L/6 *ALN AD
we LG juawyaied jo AN
020e/9L0L
g :abey 0Z0Z '0¢ 1das

140d3d JANLIANIXIANNIATY



syabpng euibuQ g papuswLy gLA PUe LD ‘LA pabesany Buisn ,

9e'LL 9l'0s 1€'66¢ 1€'66Z 00°009'Z 00'009°2 aoueInsu| aj/1eNdsoH 000'9L.
4%’ it v8'€es ¥8'¢8 00'0¢S 00°0¢s Aunoasg [e100S 000°SGLL
6591 8L'1GY L8118} LELIEL 00°00¢'8 00'00€'8 awi] fin4 - loiked 00020,
S0uBUBJUIR JBIUIM 0008/ 3daq
8€'9 GL°LLS 69'60€°) 69°60€'} 00025°0¢ 0002502 SRINIS Oljjel |
000 000 000 000 00009 00009 siopenuoliulely g ledsy 000'0£6
000 000 000 000 00009't 00009t saljddng soueusjuieyy g Jledey 000G,
000 000 000 000 00009 007008 IO 8 auljose) 000'9v.2
88'8 €0'S 99'0L 9901 00021 0002t alealpalyl 000°¢ZL
86°€L ye'ee 16'69 16'69 000058 00008 uopesuadwog sJaIoMm 000°0Z2
6e’L GbeoL 1A 4 S ATA 00'05€'E 00°0SE'E uoisuad 000°gLL
000 000 000 000 00002 00002 2|qionpaQ soueldnsu| L0092
G6°L ¥6'69 06'¢8l 06'c8l 00°00€2 0000£'Z 8oURINSU] B)T/IBNSOH 000°9).
AN 6512 G8'GF G8'sY 00°009 00°005 Aunoag eog 000°GH.
696 0E¥5¢ 68'¢5L 68'¢52 00°058°L 00'058°2 awi] [Ind - lloiked 000202
SeoIMBS QYJRIL 000Gy ideg
Lol 19°€8E") 1670E'e L670E'S 006.¢'vg 00622 SoUBUSIUIEIA BURNOY
00°2¢ 00004 00058'L 00058’} 00°000°S 00°000'G siopeRuoY IR B Jiedad 000056
9r'g 158, 1682 1581 00002 00002'€ salddng saueusjuiely B sieday 000'G/2
000 000 000 000 00°00¢ 00"00€ 1O % 2uljose) 000°91 .2
906 XA A A A A oosel 00'seL auedpeiN 000¢2L
06°€l 96'%¢C 66'CL 66'¢. 00'6¢S 006¢9 uojesuadwo] sJNOoM 000022
9gL £020L 6V'25¢ 6¥'L52 00'005°€ 00°005°¢ uoisuad 000812
000 000 000 000 00°00¢ 00002 d|quanpaq souelnsu| LO0'9L.L
0ct 158 73 LE'/81 LE°281 000092 000097 aoueInsu| ajiendsoH 000'9)2
76 e9ce 69'8Y 69'8¥ 00'525 00°Ges Runoag [e1005 000'GLL
296 ¢60.€ 75'86. 7586/ 00008 0000¢'e awi [Ind - lloied 000°20.
8oueUBUIB BURNOY 000'Sor 1dag
08'66 000 BY' 6701 BY 601 000050} 00°005°0L uoianasuoy
08'66 000 BY'6.LY 0L By 6L7°0L 00°005°0L 0000504 lended 000°0.6
uoRonasuod 000'LSy 1deg
sainyipuadx3
£ele Z0's9r'zh 91'¥68°0¢ 91'768°0¢ 00°00£'99 00°00£'99 sanuaney
eElE Z0s9r'Th 91'v68°0¢ 91'¥68'02 000099 0000299 000'000 1dag
ELLE 20's9r'eh 91'¥68'0C 91'¥68'0¢ 00°00.'99 0000299 LG WY - Sjuelg SlelS 000°9%S
000'000 3daq
sanuanay
ANN4 133418 1v2017 - £02 -pund
1e6png jo 1ebipng [enuuy 186png [enuuy
o/, B9 A JuaLng [emoy alin AD 1enjoy 410 AD lenoy AlA AD pspuswy AD  [euwbuQ AD 120¢/0€/9 91 020e/L/L -aLVY AD  0202/0€/6 ©1 0202/L/2 :LA AD
0202/0€/6 ) 020¢/Li2 “ALD AD  0202/0¢/6 9 0202/L/6 -ALW AD
We g|:6 Juswyred jo A0
0z0z/9L/0L
1 8bed 020Z ‘0¢ ¥deg

140d3d FUNLIANIdXIEANNIATY



sjabpng [euiBuQ g papuslwwy QLA PUe 41D 'aLiN pabessay Buisn ,

1821 ¥Z'1182 1972081 19'2€0'8) 00552101 0065Z°L0L sainypuadx3
¥8C 6E°0EL Y9695 v9'6¥S 00°0vE'61 00'0¥E'6L uonessiuwpY
000 000 000 000 00°00€'91 00'00£'9L PESYIBAQ SMEASIUILPY 000 096
§5'Lz j7A" (R4 (3974 00°0¢ 000¢ QIR 000°CCL
GG'e0l 96'S 1402 120 000z 0002 uonesuadwog s J8%I0M 000'0Z/
9e'el L6 1898 1898 00049 00°059 uoisued 0008l
98yl 81’0 crLLL EVLLL 00054 00064 doueinsu| 8y1T/endsoH 000912
'8l ¥e's 97’8l 97’8l 00001 00004 Runoag epos 000°GLL
z50z 9588 98°.0¢ 98°20¢ 00006'L 00°005"} 8wl |In4 - [loiked 000204
uonessiuwpY 000'Z8r 3dag
168 £00¢.L 88'89¢'7 89'88¢€'C 00029'92 0002992 SouBUBJUIBIA JBJUIM
000 000 000 000 00°006'6 00'006'6 Yes 000°€S.
99°61 000 S6'9L1 G6°9L1 00006 00°006 IO @ Buloses 0009y,
8L°GL 79 €.'61 €L61 00°GZ1 00'Gel al1edlpsiNl 000°Z¢L
99°/1L 9€'0¢ 69°¢6 696 00'525 00625 uonesuadwog sJoYI0M 00002,
99'6 el £6ZYE €6Zhe 00°0S5'E 00'055'€ uoisusd 000°8LL
000 000 000 000 00002 00002 9|qanpaq soueansu| L00'9LL
BOUBUSIUIBIA JBJUIM, 000'8.¢ deq
saunypuadx3
ANN4 133H1S TvI0T - €0¢ -pund
186png jo 1ebpng [enuuy  }abpng jenuuy
L :CYQUETITiT) [BNIOY QLN AD [BMOY 41D AD [enoY QLA AD pspusiy AN [BUBLO AD 1Z0Z/0E/9 01 0Z0Z/L/2 ALY AD  0ZOZ/OE/6 O 0Z0Z/L/L ‘LA AD
02020616 01 0¢0e/L/L (01D AD  0202/0E/6 O 020E/L/6 AL AD
We §1:6 Justuyosed jo Ao
020c/9tioL
g abeg 020z ‘0€1des

L4043y FANLIANIdXIANNIATY



sjebipng [euIBLO 3 papuswiwy gLA pue aLD ‘0L pebessny Buisn ,

0zZ'gl 00°059°L- BLLYBCL eV 1z9LL 000£8'€9 000/8°¢9 sainjipusdx3
0z'8l 00°069'L- BL'LY6'C) EV1EYLL 00°048'¢9 00°0.8°€9 000000 1deg
000 000 000 000 00096'y 007096 Aplland 020622
209} 000 59'602 G9'60¢ 00052'L 000G’} sasuadx3 moys 18l 9L0'6..
000 000 000 000 00°005'8} 000058} uswuiepsiuz 8bels £L0°6.L
66°C 000 00'9¢2 ¥2°99% 00°08L'vL 0008L'7L uonensiuwpY - [eAlsed ZL0'6..
L6661 000 656611 65166'L1 00°000'9 00°000'9 soue-buisiey pund 800°6.L
000 000 000 000 00°00¢ 00002 apeled-Aeq 1584 900'6.L
000 000 000 000 00°00¢"} 0000¢") ealy sualpiyo-keq 1sad4 S00'642
000 000 000 000 00°08% 00°08% SHBID B Sy - Aeq 1884 ¥00'6.L
9.9 00059} G6°00S So6yLL- 00°000°ZL 000002} asuadx3 sOUBLLIOHSd |00'6..
000000 1daQ
saln)ipuadxy
91've 000 00°866'%L Ze'8ey'Gl 00°0£8'¢9 00°0.8°¢9 sanuanay
9L'%g 000 00°866't7} AR rA A 00'0/8'¢9 00'0/8°€9 000000 1dsq
000 000 000 000 00°0¥8°L 00°0¥8'} snosue|easiy 000 #69
Ly.8 000 00elgel 00'8¥Z vl 00°0£9°} 00°0€9'L aoue(] Jesielpung z00'G.9
¥6°¢ 000 00051 00°00¢ 00°002°0L 00°002'0} Buisiey pund 100'5/9
000 000 000 000 00005'Z€ 00'005'2¢ ‘punod slows § Bumi-suels 100065
000 000 000 000 00005} 00°005'L $pa8d0id moyS Jed 0L0'GLY
6'0 000 00529 00529 00'000'6 00°000'6 sdiysiosuodg ajeiodiod GO0'GLy
Lok 000 68y GZ'8t 00008t 00008t aauQ pund diysisquiaiy £00'S.y
000 000 000 000 00°009 00'009 5§88 Ylepm/eoey ¢00°5.LY
0511 000 GL'19¢ 20°L02 00'008'} 00'008'L Syeld 9 suy 100G
000000 3daq
sanuansy
TYAILS3H ¥3WWNS ¥39D43937ANIM - 062 -pund
196png Jo 196png |enuuy  1aBpng [enuuy
o, 19 A JuaLng [BMOY AL AD [BMoY AL AD [ENoY QLA AD papuswy oD [ewBuQ AD 020Z/1E/Z) O 0Z0Z/L/1 QLY AD  0Z0Z/0E/6 01 0Z02/1/L ‘ALA AD
0¢0Z/LE/E OV 0Z0e/LL {ALD AD  020E/0E!6 O 0202/1/6 'L AD
we 6|6 1uauwyaied jo Ao
020z/91/0L
g :obed 020z '0¢ 1dag

1¥0d3d FUNLIANIAXIANNIATY



s)abpng [eulBuQ % papuslLly (LA PUe QLD ‘AL pabessay Buisn ,

000 000 000 000 00'006'62 00°006'62 sainjipuadx3
000 000 000 000 00°006'64 0000662 000°000 3daQ
000 000 000 000 00'008Z} 00008} asuadx3Isaisll| 000 566
000 000 000 000 00°00°9% 000049t [edioung-uswaimey 1980 000166
000 000 000 000 00°00%°02 00°00v'0¢ pesyIang sAlRISIULPY 000 096
000000 3da@
sainypuadx3
000 000 000 000 00°006'95 00°006'9G sanuanay
000 000 000 000 00°006°95 00°006'9G 000000 daq
000 000 000 000 00°006°95 00°006'95 anuaAsy Xel 000 ¥0r
000°000 1dag
sanusAay
wswdojerapay playumolg - |Gz pund
18bpng Jo 196png jenuuy  196png |enuuy
9, Jea\ Jualng [enoy gL AD [enoy a1d AD [BNDY QLA AD papuawy AD  [eulBuQ AD 1Z0Z/0E/9 01 0Z0Z/L/L ‘ALY AD  0Z02/0€/6 01 020Z/L/L ‘ALA AD
0¢0ZI0EM6 01 0C0Z/L/L QLD AD 02OCIOEI6 O} 0c0e/ L6 "ALIN AD
We 66 Juswyoled jo Ao
020c/9L/oL
0l :abeg 020z '0€ 1des

140d3d FANLIANIIXIEANNIATY



sjabpng [eulbuQ % papusily QLA pPue 01O ‘AL pebessay Buisn ,

000 0z'c6r 0Z'26Y 0Z'¢6y 000 000 sanuansy
000 0C'zev 0Z'c6¥ 0¢'c6y 000 000 000000 3daQ
000 0¢'26y 0Z'ce¥ 0Z'cor 000 000 anusaay [eyded painquiuod 000'vL9
000000 1daq
SanUaASY
pun4 [ELOWSIN S,UBISIBA - LO¥ :pun4
186png jo 126png jenuuy  }96png [enuuy
9, JES A JUBLND [enoy QLN AD lenay a1 AD [BM2Y QLA AD papuswy AD  [eulBuQ AD 1Z0ZI06/9 ©1 020Z/L/L *1Y AD  0Z02/0/6 01 0202/ L/L ‘A LA AD
0¢0¢/0€/6 O} 020¢/LIL LD AD  0Z02/0E/6 O 0202/ 1/6 :LN AD
we L6 Juswydied jo Ao
0c0¢/atioL
1| :ebeg 0zZ0¢ ‘0g 1des

14043 JANLAN3dX3ANNIATY



s196png (euiBug g papuswwLY QLA PUB AL ‘LW pabeiany Buisp ,

89°9LZ- 08'LO¥' Ly~ 0F'€65'4€5 8F EVE'6ES 00°GEV'LFC-  00'GEV'LVT ‘Josyg 1eN [ej0L pueis
8eel 02°99.'% 92'900'0¢ 92'900'0¢ 00°0Z)'281 00021281 sainypusdx3
8e¢h 02'99.'% 92'900'0¢ 92'900'02 00021281 00021281 000000 da@
000 000 000 000 00°009°¢L 00°009°¢} uonepaldaq 000896
000 000 000 000 0000082 0000088 pesyisAQ sAlensiuilupY 000096
oo'Le 000 000 000 00°000°GL 00°000'GL siopeAUOY IR 3 JledaYd 000056
12°8¢ co0vee 02059 02°099 0000£°C 00'00£'C samiin 000026
et 000 GC62S'T §2°625°C 00°00%°0L 00°00¥'0L spuog @ 8ouensu| 000°0L6
L6l 0562 1866 18'66 00005 00009 [Busy wuojun 000°GLe
000 000 000 000 00°000°94 00'000°9L "AIBS [BNJOBAUOD/[BUOISSII0I 000°008
£Lle 85'6€ vL 0L ¥L0ZL 0o0ze 000z aledlpail 000°¢EL
19Ty 7c'99 SoeLe S0€cle 00005 00005 uojesuadwoy sOM 00002,
vL'82 98'%08 712197 PL219C 00°00€'6 0000’6 uoisuad 000812
000 000 000 000 00005 00005 8|gnonpaQ soueinsu| LO09LL
1g'€9 LULL9 GEVLO'Y GEPLO'Y 00°00¢"2 00'00€'L aouelnsu| aj/ieNdsoH 000'9L.
¥8'9¢ 86'891 GLSLS GLGLS 00°00%'} 0000t} Aunoag [ewos 000°Sk.
ZE6E £6'228'C 16'6¥9'8 L6698 00°000°z2 0000022 auw] [in4 - [joied 000202
000'000 3daq
sainypuadx3
16'L2 000 625901 6259701 00'005'2¢ 00'005°2¢ senueasy
1622 000 62'G9F'0L 6259701 00005'2¢ 00'005°2¢8 000°000 1daq
000 000 000 000 00008t 00°008°} sjuaiuisaau| uoJsalsiu| 00099
1692 000 62596 62'G9Y'6 00002'GE 00'00£°GE S82IMBG JeMag 000923
000 000 00'000°} 00°000'} 000 000 sjwiad 0009.%
000000 3dag
EERIEREN
QONN4 ¥3M3S - 065 -pung
196png jo 18bpng |enuuy  1abpng |enuuy
9% JEBA JUBLINY 1enoy gliN AD |eney a1d AD [enioy Q1A AD papuswy AD leulblQ AD 1.¢02/0E/9 O} 0Z0Z/LIL *ALY AD  020Z/0E/6 O 0Z0Z/L/L }dLA AD
0Z0Z/0£/6 ©1 0Z02/1/L°ALD AD  0ZOZ/0E/G O 0Z0T/Li6 :OLN AD
Wwe gL'6 Juswydted jo A1
0c0c/9Li0L
zZ| :ebeg 020z '0¢ 1dos

1d0d3d JUNLIANIdX3/ANNIATY



60°LEO'BLY  § |e30] JuaWIsanu|
Z8'760'9 s pun4 1334e|A\ AsuoN jueg BN
152491u| |euollenN pP|1O
/S €8T S pund 1ayJeN Asuoy 02S3AU|/|euOlleN u0l3uluNy
IV9/LTT S pun4 1a4e Asuopy JawiayuaddQ
I¥'LT0°L0T S Hsodaq sueg adejuenpy Jowlayuaddg  %ST'T
00°000°00T S puog uodno) dais Jiad odieq |9 - Jowdyuaddo  %0L'T 1202/8¢/6
00°000°00T S HsodaQ Jo 93ed141349) odiefs|PM-dIN  %06°C €70¢/L2/t
8'v9T'TS S Hsodaq Jo 91ed141143) |[euoileN pj0 %050 770z/S1/6
unowy 1uawisaaul] jo adA] uollnyIsu| 91ey 1saualu]  21eq Auniely

0202 ‘0€ 1aquiaidas
Hoday 1uswiisanuj
juswiyaied jo A1



ACCT. NUMBER: XXX XXXX XXXX 1546
CREDIT LIMIT 15,000.00 CASH ADVANCE BALANCE .00
CURRENT BALANCE 1,965.28 MINIMUM PAYMENT DUE 1,965.28
AVAILABLE CREDIT 13,034.72 PAYMENT DUE DATE 10-23-20
CORPORATE ACCOUNT ACTIVITY
CITY OF PARCHMENT TOTAL CORPORATE ACTIVITY
XXXX-XXXX-XXXX-1546 $2,805.06 CR
Post Trans
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount
09-09 09-09 75569260253000000001619 ANNUAL PROGRAM FEE 250.00
09-21  09-21 AUTO PAYMENT DEDUCTION 3,055.06 CR
INDIVIDUAL CARDHOLDER ACTIVITY
BILL CAHILL CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITY
KUXXK-XXXX-XXXX-1801 $0.00 $244.78 $0.00 $244.78
Post Trans
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
09-17 0915 85179240260980005540998 STEENSMA LAWN AND POWE KALAMAZOO MI 10.74
09-18 09-16 85179240261700609001810 ONE WAY PRODUCTS 269-343-3772 MI 234.04
JIM DUBY CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITY
XXX -XXXX-XXXX-1892 $0.00 $11.97 $0.00 $11.97
Post Trans
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
09-18 0917 02305370262000494282872 TRACTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOO M| 11.97
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITY
KKK -XXXX-XKXK-9114 $0.00 $592.87 $0.00 $592.87
Post Trans
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
08-27 08-25 02305370239100077243950 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M| 31.88
08-27 08-25 02305370239100077243877 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI 39.82
09-04 09-03 55453700248042000044664 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS #17 KALAMAZOO MI 13.73
09-07 09-04 55432860249200283210132 PURITY CYLINDER GASES KALAMAZOO MI 98.74
09-18 09-17 65230970262000000489361 GOODYEAR COMMERCIAL Tl KALAMAZOO M| 344.50
09-25 09-23 55421350268627189716963 MULDERS LANDSCAPE SUPP KALAMAZOO MI 64.20
SHANNON STUTZ CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITY
YOXKX XXX -XXXX-0473 $0.00 $865.66 $0.00 $865.66
Post Trans
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
08-23 08-28 55432860241200244859413 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO 74.98
08-28 08-27 02305370241000497011472 USPS PO 2549110002 KALAMAZOO MI 349.50
09-08 09-07 55429500251637099554637  PIXELVINE 8007340751 Ml 71.25
09-14 09-13 55429500257637586763265  PIXELVINE 8007340751 MI 65.00
09-21 09-18 55432860262200589648292 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO 74,98
09-28 09-28 55432860272200908463488 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO 84,98
09-28 09-26 55432860270200443205818 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO 144,97




KALAMAZOO VALLEY INTERGOVERNMENTAL AMBULANCE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made between the KALAMAZOO CHARTER TOWNSHIP,
ALAMO TOWNSHIP, COOPER CHARTER TOWNSHIP, the OSHTEMO CHARTER
TOWNSHIP, the CITY OF PARCHMENT, the CITY OF KALAMAZOO (hereinafter the
“Municipalities”) and Life EMS of Kalamazoo, Inc., a Michigan Corporation (hereinafter “Life
EMS™).

WHEREAS, in order to provide more responsive, reliable and cost-effective ambulance
and other emergency services, the Municipalities requested proposals for an intergovernmental
ambulance agreement, seeking a single provider for emergency services for their residents; and

WHEREAS, the Municipalities pursuant to the authority granted by 1951 Public Act 35,
as amended (being MCL 124.1 et seq.) and 2011 Public Act 258 (being MCL 124.111 et seq.)
are interested in sharing oversight responsibilities for the provision of these services; and

WHEREAS, Life EMS has presented a signed proposal in response to the request for
proposals (RFP) prepared by the Municipalities that fully addresses all issues related to the
provision of and payment for ambulance and other emergency services; and

WHEREAS, the Municipalities wish to enter into an Agreement with Life EMS, and
have designated the proposed agreement as the Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Municipalities and Life EMS wish to supplement the proposal signed
by Life EMS in response to the request for proposals in order to create a binding agreement that
describes the obligations and responsibilities that the Municipalities have to each other, and more
fully details the obligations and responsibilities of Life EMS to the Municipalities, both
collectively and as individual governmental entities.

IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

L. This Agreement as amended to reflect changes in the; EMS response protocol as
adopted by Kalamazoo County Medical Control Authority (KCMCA), required paramedic
staffing levels and the ambulance rates (Exhibit A) . The RFP signed by Life EMS as submitted
via correspondence dated May 29, 2014 from Mark Meijer, President, Life EMS, to Terry Emig,
Chief, Cooper Charter Township Fire Department, constitute a single Agreement that shall be
known as the Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement (KVIAA).

2. All references to the Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance
Agreement and to the local governmental entities in the RFP submitted and signed by Life EMS
shall be deemed to refer to all municipalities that are a party to this Agreement, including any
other municipality who becomes a party to the Agreement subsequent to the date of its
execution, as further described below.



% Any party to this Agreement, including Life EMS, may terminate its participation
by providing 180 days written notice to all other parties at any time after the initial four-year
term of this Agreement has expired. This notice, and all other notices under this Agreement,
shall be sent to the following persons:

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF COOPER: Township Supervisor
1590 West ‘D’ Avenue
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMAZOO Township Supervisor
1720 Riverview
Kalamazoo, MI 49004

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO: Township Supervisor
7275 W. Main St.
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

CITY OF PARCHMENT: Office of the City Manager
650 S. Riverview
Parchment, MI 49004

CITY OF KALAMAZQO: Office of the City Manager
241 W. South St.
Kalamazoo, MI 49007

TOWNSHIP OF ALAMO Township Supervisor
7901 North 6™ Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

LIFE EMS LIFE EMS
Mark Meijer
517 W. North St.
Kalamazoo, MI 49007

4. Approval must be obtained from each municipality that is a signatory to this
Agreement and from Life EMS before any other governmental unit can become a party to this
Agreement. Any municipality that becomes a party to this Agreement after its effective date
shall be an equal partner, and shall have the same status under its terms as those municipalities
that are initial signatories.

5 Any modification in the terms of this Agreement, including fees, must be
approved by Life EMS and by three-fourths of the municipalities who are at that time a party to
this Agreement.

6. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the RFP signed by Life
EMS, the terms of this Agreement shall control.



7. It is understood and agreed that the KVIAA oversight Board, as referenced in the
RFP, is an oversight body only, and its members have no authority to bind any party to this
Agreement.

8. The KVIAA Oversight Board has the authority to make recommendations to the
Municipalities then participating in this Agreement that a default be declared, as provided for in
the RFP. A formal notice of default shall be sent to Life EMS if approved by the appropriate
official or body of at least three-fourths of the Municipalities that are parties to this Agreement at
that time.

9. Any local ordinance referenced in the RFP signed by Life EMS that is specific to
any one municipality shall be applicable only to that municipality, and shall not be in any way
binding upon the other Municipalities that are a party to this Agreement.

10. Because response times to calls for the services provided by Life EMS is a critical
component of this Agreement, the performance measures and penalties for failure to meet those
measures are set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

11. This Agreement may be executed in six or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original when signed by the duly authorized representative of any party. While each

such document shall be deemed to be an original, all such documents together shall constitute
one and the same Agreement.

KALAMAZOO CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Date: By:

Its:

COOPER CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Date: By:

Its:

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Date: By:

Its:




Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

CITY OF PARCHMENT

By:

Its:

CITY OF KALAMAZOO

By:

Its:

ALAMO TOWNSHIP

By:

[ts:

LIFE EMS OF KALAMAZOQO, INC.

By:

Its:




2020 Exhibit A to the
Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement

Calculation, Notification, and Distribution of Penalties and Payments from KVIAA Contract

I Response Times: Penalties and breeches are based on Kalamazoo County Medical Control
Authority (KCMCA) response time directives. Changes may be implemented by a joint
recommendation from KCMCA, the KVIAA oversight board, and the contracted agency. The
legacy KCMCA response time standards are listed below for reference.

Zonel Zone 2
_ Priority | TimelInterval | Compliance | Timelnterval | Compliance
1 < 10:00 2 90% £14:00 = 90%
2 =ad00 0 200% L =16:00 . 290%
3 < 20:00 2 90% < 20:00 > 90%

e The time the responding unit is notified will be used to evaluate the response time interval.

e The Advanced Life Support Unit response time target begins upon the time the unit is notified by the EMD.

e  The Advanced Life Support Unit response time target ends upon arrival of the Advanced Life Support Unit to the
physical address or staged location.

1. Emergency Medical Call Processing Time Targets:

Time Interval Compliance
~ PSAP notifiedto | <60seconds |  290%
time EMD notified |/ . |
EMD notified to <120 seconds 290%
time unit notified
Unitnotifiedto | <15seconds |  290%
timePSAPhotified®s = = . |\ . .

PSAP notified — Time that PSAP picks up the call

EMD notified — Time that EMD picks up the call

Unit notified — Time that the EMD assigns a call to an ambulance
*For calls initially received by EMD

lll.  Penalties and Breaches: The KVIAA contract describes the following penalties and breeches.
A. Per call penalty Zone 1 and Zone 2:

a. $15 for each Priority | or Il response exceeding KCMCA standards or turned over to a
non-contracted agency.

B. Breaches Zone 1:
a. Minor:
i. Priority | $350.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar month within a range of 85%-89%.
ii. Priority 11 $125.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar month period within a range of 85%-89%.



b. Major:
i. Priority I $500.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar month.
ii. Priority 11 $300.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar month.

C. Breaches Zone 2:
a. Minor:
i. Priority 1 $350.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar quarter within a range of 85%-89%.
ii. Priority Il $125.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar year within a range of 85-89%.

i. Priority | $500.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar quarter.

ii. Priority 11 $300.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar year.

IV.  Response Zones: The revised response zones have been changes from Metropolitan and Non-
Metropolitan to Zone 1 and Zone 2. The new KVIAA zones are based upon recommendations
from KCMCA and are subject to change by a joint recommendation among the KVIAA oversight
board, KCMCA, and the contracted provider. The current 2018 accepted response zones are:

Zonel Zone 2

City of Galesburg Alamo Township

City of Kalamazoo Brady Township

City of Parchment Charleston Township

City of Portage Climax Township (and Village of Climax)
Comstock Township Cooper Township (D Avenue and North)
Cooper Township (D Avenue and South) Pavilion Township

Kalamazoo Township Prairie Ronde Township

Oshtemo Township Richland Township (and Village of Richland)
Schoolcraft Township (W Avenue and North)  Ross Township

Texas Township Schoolcraft Township (W Avenue and South)
Village of Schoolcraft Village of Augusta

Village of Vicksburg Wakeshma Township

V.  Calculation of Penalties:
A. Per call penalties: Shall be calculated for priority 1 —Zone 1, and Zone 2 calls, and priority 2
Zone 1 and Zone 2 calls as described in the following example:

Total Priority 1 Requests for Zone 1 Jurisdiction “x” 100
Completed responses that met 10 minutes O seconds 86
Responses that exceeded 10 minutes 0 seconds 12
Calls turned over to non-contracted agency 2

6



Total calls with response delay or turn over

Number of calls subject to $15 per call assessment

Monthly per call assessment paid to jurisdiction “x”

14
14
$210.00

B. Breach penalties: Shall be calculated for priority 1 and 2 - Zone 1 and Zone 2 based on
aggregate data from a fractile report over time intervals noted in section IIB and IIC of this

document. KVIAA responses of the same priority from all jurisdictions will be combined

together to determine an overall percentage of compliance as demonstrated below:

Aggregare [ [ T T
AP, - L R O
Priority 1 j '
Mutual |[Requested
0-2 Min |2-4 Min |4-6 Min |6-8 Min |8-10 Min |10-12 Min | 12-14 Min |14-16 Min |16-18 Min |18-20 Min | Aid |Exceptions TOTAL Compliant
20 100 205 155 20 5 0 0 0 0 5 0 510 98%
_, . Threshold | 50%
Priority 2 | i
Mutual [Requested
0-2 Min | 2-4 Min |4-6 Min |6-8 Min |8-10 Min |10-12 Min | 12-14 Min [14-16 Min | 16-18 Min [18-20 Min | Aid |Exceptions TOTAL Compliant
20 30 90 55 30 15 4 6 2 0 8 0 260 94%
e _ fone2
Priority 1 i :
Mutual |Requested
0-2 Min | 2-4 Min |4-6 Min |6-8 Min |8-10 Min | 10-12 Min [12-14 Min | 14-16 Min |16-18 Min [18-20 Min | Aid |Exceptions TOTAL |Compliant
0 0 0 0 4 6 7 2 1 0 1 0 21 81%
Priority 2 ] ! i
Mutual |Requested
0-2 Min [2-4 Min [4-6 Min |6-8 Min [8-10 Min | 10-12 Min | 12-14 Min |14-16 Min [16-18 Min |18-20 Min Aid |Exceptions TOTAL Compliant
0 0 0 0 4 8 6 6 2 0 1 0 27 89%
__Threshold | 90%

C. Calculating of Percentage Performance: Shall be rounded up or down to the nearest whole

percentage point utilizing conventional methods. For the example above:

d.

compliance.

mutual aid requests) = 80.952. This number is rounded up to 81%.

Priority 1 — Zone 1: 510 (responses that met standard) / 510 (total responses
including mutual aid requests) = 98.039. This number is rounded down to 98%

Priority 1 — Zone 2: 17 (responses that met standard) / 21 (total responses including

D. Exemptions: The KVIAA and contracted agency recognize that there are instances where

response delays are unavoidable. In such cases an exemption will be requested by the

contracted agency with supporting documentation and presented to the KVIAA oversight

board at the regular operations summary meetings. Approved exemptions will NOT count

against the contracted agency in the calculation of response time performance or penalties.

Acceptable exemption examples include the following:

a. Severe weather delay
b. Construction delay
c.

7

Multiple calls same time frame same, jurisdiction, not allowing for system recovery




d. System overload that overwhelms planned and full staffing
e. Mass Casualty Incidents (MCI)
f. Diversion to higher priority call

VI. Communication of Penalties and Distribution of Payment:

A. Penalties will be evaluated by the contractor on a quarterly/yearly basis (section IIl) utilizing
an aggregate fractile report to determine total penalty amounts.

B. A quarterly email containing a summary of per call penalties listed by KVIAA jurisdiction and
any breaches in service will be sent ahead of payment distribution by the contracted agency
to the appointed board representative from each municipality and the City of Kalamazoo
Purchasing Manager.

C. The contractor shall distribute payment in the form of a single check for the total amount of
all applicable penalties for the quarter made payable to the City of Kalamazoo and directed
to the City of Kalamazoo Public Safety Department, Attention: Assistant Chief Tibbets (or his
successor) at 150 E. Crosstown Parkway, Ste. A, Kalamazoo, MI 49007.

D. The summary and payment will be sent no later than 90 days from the close of the reported
on quarter.

E. The Kalamazoo Public Safety Department Assistant Chief, or their designee, will direct per
call penalty amounts to specified accounts to the KVIAA jurisdiction in which they occurred.

F. Breach penalties will be directed at the discretion of the KVIAA oversight board by the
Kalamazoo Public Safety Department Assistant Chief or their designee.

Paramedic Staffing (Section Ill, Subsection B, paragraph 6 of RFP)

The KVIAA participating local governments believe that two, well-qualified paramedics

best serve critical patients. Due to the current national shortage of paramedics, the KVIAA
participating local governments agree to allow for up to 40% of scheduled unit hours to be
staffed with a single, highly experienced and qualified paramedic and an EMT. Therefore, the
Contractor shall assure that at least 60% of all scheduled unit hours be staffed by two
paramedics. The exception from the previously agreed upon unit hour staffing of 70%
paramedic, 30% EMT shall be valid for the contract renewal period of November 1, 2020-
October 31, 2022. Proof of staffing the configuration may be requested and/or audited by
KVIAA during periodic reporting.



Life EMS Ambulance Summary for new Kalamazoo County Fee Schedule
Effective January 1, 2020

Life EMS Ambulance is proposing new service delivery rates (as noted below) for both transport and
non-transport pre-hospital work with a target implementation date of Jan 1, 2020. There are three
primary driving forces guiding the rate adjustments which include the rising costs to do business
(payroll, fuel, supplies, health insurance, etc), adjustments to private insurance company ambulance
reimbursement rates (BCBS, BCN, Priority Health, Etc.) and future work / reimbursement models
associated with ET3 and Tandem 365 (both detailed below). Life EMS believes our ambulance rates are
industry competitive and cost effective, reflecting appropriate and modest adjustments that will allow
us to remain responsive to the needs of our communities.

1. Emergency Triage, Treat and Transport (ET3) is a voluntary, five year model, Pilot program
proposed by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Innovations (CMMI) that will provide
ambulance companies the opportunity to receive some level of reimbursement for alternate
destination (non-emergency department) transports as well as non-traditional treat on scene /
non-transport instances. The five-year payment model is intended to provide greater flexibility
to ambulance care teams to address emergency health care needs of Medicare Fee-For Service
(FFS) beneficiaries following a 911 call. Life EMS is providing a letter of interest to have both its
Central (Kent /Ottawa) and South (Kalamazoo / Allegan / Van Buren) operations participate in
the pilot program. Deliverables for the project include the formation of community
partnerships among Medicare-enrolled qualified health care providers that can offer alternative
destinations or telehealth services. Applications for the program must be received by
September 19, 2019.

2. Tandem 365 is a collaborative venture assisting hospitals, doctors, family members and
individuals in need of healthcare services not traditionally provided. A unique and on-going
special study through the State of Michigan Department of Health and Human Services, the
company (of which Life EMS is a part-owner) provides persons with little or no social support,
who are 55 and older, assistance in managing their medically complex health issues. Tandem’s
goals are to decrease emergency room visits, decrease specialty / outpatient visits, deliver
comprehensive cost-effective care and improve the quality of life of program participants all
while reducing overall healthcare dollar expenditure with high system users. The organization
has current reimbursement partnerships with Priority Health and Blue Care Network, has been
in operation in Kent County for four years and has over 1,000 program participants. Life EMS is
planning to launch the Tandem 365 program in our Kalamazoo County market early fall, 2019.

While reimbursement for Both Tandem 365 and ET3 programs will be very different, their

operational structures are nearly parallel and complement each other well. This operational similarity
will ensure a common procedural knowledge base among hoth traditional pre-hospital EMS crews and
specialized Integrated Care Paramedics (ICP’s). We believe that both programs will allow Life EMS
Ambulance to remain an industry leader while providing the communities we serve with a unique and
cost effective method to access healthcare resources well into the future.



Life EMS AMBULANCE OF
KALAMAZOO COUNTY

Pre-hospital Care and Transportation Fee Schedule
Effective January 1, 2020

BASE RATES: CURRENT NEW
Non-Emergency $449.00 $459.00
Emergency $679.00 $693.00
ALS Non-Emergency $699.00 $713.00
ALS Emergency $799.00 $815.00
ALS 2 $899.00 $929.00
NICU/SCT $979.00 $999.00
On Scene Treatment ALS 1 & ALS 2 $579.00 $591.00
ALS Assessment/No Transport $299.00 $439.00
No ALS/Patient Assist $79.00 $89.00 +
Special Equipment & Handling (Haz Mat, etc.) $25.00+ $25.00 +
Treatment/Waiting Time After 30 Minutes $30.00 $49.00

Per 15-minute Increments

Mileage (Divided by number of patients: Loaded miles only):

Mileage Charge (rate per mile) $15.50 $16.15

10



MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Nancy R Stoddard, City Manager

Date: October 19, 2020

Re: Master Plan Distribution to the Public

Motion — Motion to authorize the Planning Commission to Distribute the Master Plan to the Public.

The motion to authorize the Planning Commission to distribute the Master Plan to the public will begin
the 63 day process in which the public may comment on the Master Plan. The Master Plan will be sent
for feedback to the following public entities: neighboring communities, schools, utilities, and railroads.

Two weeks before the 63 days have expired a public hearing notice will be issued for the residents of the
City of Parchment to express their comments regarding the Master Plan. We will offer virtual feedback
opportunities as well as Facebook commenting.



Interlocal Agreement for Kalamazoo County to Approve the Designated
Assessor for the period January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2025

Public Act 660 of 2018 requires a county to have a Designated Assessor on file with the State Tax
Commission as of December 31, 2020. Accordingly, the following interlocal agreement
(hereinafter “AGREEMENT”) has been executed by the Board of Commissioners for
Kalamazoo County, a majority of the Assessing Districts in Kalamazoo County, and the
individual put forth as the proposed Designated Assessor. Kalamazoo County and the Assessing
Districts are collectively referred to throughout this AGREEMENT as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, The Assessing Districts are Municipal Corporations located within the County of
Kalamazoo, in the State of Michigan;

WHEREAS, The Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 7, Section 28 permits a political
subdivision to exercise jointly with any other political subdivision any power, privilege
or authority which such political subdivisions share in common with each other and
which each might exercise separately;

WHEREAS, The Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, being MCL 124.505 et seg, and the
Intergovernmental Transfer of Functions and Responsibilities Act, give effect to the
Constitutional provision by providing that public agencies may enter into interlocal
agreements to carry out their respective functions, powers and authority;

WHEREAS, P.A. 660 of 2018 requires each County to enter into an AGREEMENT that
designates the individual who will serve as the County’s Designated Assessor. That
interlocal agreement must be approved by the County Board and a majority of the
Assessing Districts in the County.

WHEREAS, P.A. 660 of 2018 mandates that the Designated Assessor shall be an advanced
assessing officer or a master assessing officer.

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the foregoing Recitals, and in consideration of the terms of this
Agreement, the Members agree as follows:

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Kalamazoo County proposes that Aaron Powers (R-6684) serve as the Designated Assessor for
the following Assessing Districts within Kalamazoo County: Alamo Township, Brady Township,
Charleston Township, Climax Township, Comstock Township, Cooper Township, Kalamazoo
Township, Oshtemo Township, Pavilion Township, Prairie Ronde Township, Richland Township,
Ross Township, Schoolcraft Township, Texas Township, Wakeshma Township, Galesburg City,
Kalamazoo City, Parchment City and Portage City. Included as an addendum to this
AGREEMENT are the Kalamazoo County SEV totals by class, including special act values,
those properties deemed unique or complex by a local Assessing District, and a listing of the
total number of parcels, by classification, including special act rolls, within each Assessing
District.



Once the Designated Assessor process is invoked, the Parties agree that the Designated Assessor
will perform the duties associated with being the assessor of record for an Assessing District at a
mutually agreeable location. The Parties further agree that specific hours will be negotiated as part
of the employment contract to be executed in the event an Assessing District is subject to the
Designated Assessor process.

QUALIFICATIONS OF DESIGNATED ASSESSOR

1. Aaron P. Powers is currently certified as a Michigan Master Assessing Officer (MAAQ).
Certification number R-6684. Aaron P. Powers is currently an owner, and Managing
Director, of WCA Assessing which acts as the assessor of record for multiple assessing
jurisdictions throughout Michigan. WCA Assessing assesses over 27 billion in SEV for its
client jurisdictions annually.

Mr. Powers has been the assessor of record for many complex assessing jurisdictions and
currently serves in that role for the Townships of Canton, Plymouth and Northville, as well
as the Cities of Kalamazoo, Oak Park, and River Rouge.

2. There are no known conflicts of interest between the Designated Assessor and Kalamazoo
County or any Assessing Districts within the County.

It is understood that the individual identified as the Designated Assessor in this AGREEMENT
will, during the length of this agreement, maintain their assessor certification in good standing
with the State Tax Commission and when required to serve as the Designated Assessor for an
Assessing District in Kalamazoo County shall act as the Assessor of Record for that Assessing
District. When acting as the Assessor of Record for an Assessing District, the Designated Assessor
shall meet all the requirements as set forth by the State Tax Commission’s Supervising Preparation
of the Assessment Roll approved by the State Tax Commission August 21, 2018.

Any additional requirements that are agreed to by the Designated Assessor, the County and the
Assessing Districts may not conflict with the State Tax Commission’s Supervising Preparation of
the Rolls.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF DESIGNATED ASSESSOR

The Designated Assessor, while serving as the assessor of record for an Assessing District within
Kalamazoo County, shall satisfy all requirements contained State Tax Commission’s Supervising
Preparation of the Assessment Roll approved by the State Tax Commission August 21, 20138.

Within days of being appointed as the Designated Assessor for the Assessing District, the
Designated Assessor shall prepare and transmit to the Assessing District’s supervisor, manager, or
chief executive a detailed proposal, including a schedule for delivery of documents, to correct
deficiencies identified by the State Tax Commission’s audit.

The Parties agree that the Designated Assessor, while serving as the assessor of record for an
Assessing District within Kalamazoo County, shall:



Attendance at Board of Review Meetings

The Designated Assessor, or his designee, shall attend all March, July and December Board
of Review meetings. It is agreed that if an Assessing District does not have an existing
resolution allowing for alternative dates for July and December Boards of Review, they will
adopt one.

Duties and Responsibilities related to Assessment Appeals

The Designated Assessor, or his designee, shall defend all appeals to the Small Claims
Division of the Michigan Tax Tribunal. This shall include, but not be limited to, answering
and filing petitions, preparing and submitting evidence and other such information
necessary to property defend such appeal, and he or his designee appearing at all hearings
or meetings as may be necessary for defending such appeals. All of the foregoing regarding
appeals to the small claims division of the Michigan Tax Tribunal is deemed to be included
the services compensated pursuant to the terms and provisions of this agreement.

All other appeals to the Full Claims Division of the Michigan Tax Tribunal, State Tax
Commission, or other court, the Assessing District shall obtain competent legal counsel at
its expense. If counsel shall desire assistance of the Designated Assessor in the defense of
such appeals, additional fees for preparing appraisals, analyses, and/or consultation, shall
be reviewed and approved by the Assessing District and agreed upon in a case-by-case basis.
The Designated Assessor shall be available to the Assessing District as an expert witness
on behalf of the Assessing District in any proceedings. Compensation for travel associated
with such proceedings shall be reimbursed by Assessing District.

Reporting Requirements and responsibility to meet with local unit officials

On or before December 31 of each year, at the Assessing Districts request, the Designated
Assessor shall prepare written recommendations and conclusions regarding the current
state of the Assessing Districts Assessment Rolls, by class, together with specific
recommendations concerning actions which, in the opinion of the Designated Assessor,
should be taken to achieve maximum equity and uniformity in the assessment process and
compliance with State Tax Commission guidelines and rules and regulations.

Any and all obligations of local unit assessing staff members

If an Assessing Unit employs any certified assessing staff other than the Assessor of
Record, those staff members will remain employees of the Assessing District. Those staff
members will continue to conduct their duties as they understand them under the
supervision of the Designated Assessor. If changes in duties are identified as necessary by
the Designated Assessor, those changes will be discussed with the employee and the
Assessing District prior to implementation. No existing staff member will be terminated
by the Designated Assessor without the prior approval of the Assessing District.

Responsibilities of Designated Assessor while not acting as an assessor of record for an
Assessing District under this agreement

The Designated Assessor will have no official duties of record pertaining to this agreement
until such time as he is appointed the Designated Assessor of Record for an Assessing
District under this agreement. Upon their request, the Designated Assessor will meet with
an Assessing District to discuss potential solutions of any deficiencies identified by AMAR
to avoid any formal action by the State Tax Commission.




6. Requirement to remain certified and in good standing

The Designated Assessor shall maintain his Michigan Master Assessing Officer
certification and remain in good standing with the requirements of the State Tax
Commission.

Non-exclusivity

Nothing in this Agreement prevents or limits the Designated Assessor from serving as the
Designated Assessor, Certifying Assessor, Assessor of Record, Equalization Director, or in
any other assessing capacity in any City, Township, County, or Assessing District
jurisdiction in Michigan.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF KALAMAZOO COUNTY AND
ASSESSING DISTRICTS WITHIN KALAMAZOO COUNTY

The Parties to this AGREEMENT understand and agree that the Assessing Districts identified in
this AGREEMENT required to utilize the services of the Designated Assessor will, during and
throughout the term of this AGREEMENT, to the following:

1.

Access to required documents and information

While under contract with the Designated Assessor, the Assessing District shall provide
reasonable access to all assessing records, documents, databases, and information. This
shall include remote access to the Assessing District’s computer and network resources if
available.

Policies and procedures

Furnish the Designated Assessor with any applicable 1ocal policies and procedures
that the Designated Assessor may be subject to during the period of time the Designated
Assessor serves as the Assessing District’s assessor of record including technology,
equipment, facilities, personnel, etc. that may apply to him or his designee.

Provide any technologyv, equipment, and workspace
The Assessing District shall provide necessary technology, equipment and workspace for
the Designated Assessor to carry out their requirements under this Agreement.




DESIGNATED ASSESSOR COMPENSATION

The Designated Assessor may charge an Assessing District that is required to contract with the
Designated Assessor and that Assessing District shall pay, for the reasonable costs incurred by the
Designated Assessor in serving as the Assessing District’s Assessor of Record, including, but not
limited to, the costs of overseeing and administering the annual assessment, preparing and
defending the assessment roll, and operating the assessing office.

1.

Fee Structure

Should the Designated Assessor process be invoked, the annual fees for providing
oversight, preparation and administration of the annual assessment roll will be based on a
per parcel basis with the following fee schedule:

Agricultural Real ~ $16.00 per parcel
Commercial Real $18.00 per parcel

Industrial Real $18.00 per Parcel
Residential Real $16.00 per parcel
Other Real $16.00 per parcel

Personal Property  $15.00 per parcel
Special Act Parcels $20.00 per parcel

Should the necessity of a re-appraisal be necessary to bring an Assessment District into AMAR
compliance the per parcel fee for such service, for real property, is $80.00 per parcel.

Hourly fee schedule for personnel are as follows;
MMAO Assessor $150.00 per Hour
MAAO Assessor $100.00 per Hour
MCAO Assessor $60.00 per Hour
Support Staff $45.00 per Hour

the fees above are for services performed by the Designated Assessor in 2021 and are subject to
a 4% increase for subsequent years under this contract.

Payment Responsibility
All fees associated with serving as the Designated Assessor shall be paid directly by the
Assessing District under contract within 30 days of invoicing.

3. Payment in the event of Death or Disability

In the event of Death or Disability of the Designated Assessor, only compensation for work
performed and completed shall be made.



4. Identification of additional Costs
The following items are considered additional costs outside of overseeing and administering the
annual assessment, preparing and defending the assessment roll, and operating the assessing
office;

-Setting up Tax Database for Tax Collection

-Printing or mailing of Tax Bills

-Printing or mailing of Assessment Change Notices, or Personal Property forms
-Appraisal work for Full Tribunal Appeals

-Expert Testimony

These additional costs shall be the responsibility of the Assessing District.

5. Contractor Relationship

All services provide by the Designated Assessor while under contract with the Assessing District
will be further agreed to by contract with the Designated Assessor’s company WCA Assessing.
WCA Assessing will provide for general liability, workman’s comp, professional error and
omissions insurance upon a mutually agreed amount indemnifying the Assessing District. The
Designated Assessor is an employee of WCA Assessing and any and all resources of WCA
Assessing provided to the Assessing District under this agreement would be further specified by
contract subject to the fees and terms specified above.

6. Current WCA Assessing Clients
The need to invoke the Designated Assessor is only necessary if a Assessing District is in
substantial non-compliance with AMAR and a corrective action plan is not accepted or approved
upon a follow up review. Should these events somehow occur with a existing client of WCA
Assessing, at the time of the execution of this agreement, WCA Assessing would waive all costs
associated with this agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS

1. Petition to State Tax Commission
Upon the execution of this Interlocal Agreement, the County shall petition the State Tax
Commission to approve Aaron P. Powers MMAO as the County Designated Assessor. The
individual shall serve as the County Designated Assessor upon approval of the State Tax
Commission. If the State Tax Commission rejects the County’s petition, then the parties agree
to enter into additional Interlocal agreements under MCL 211.10g(4)(a) until a suitable
assessor is presented.

2. Nondiscrimination
The Parties hall adhere to all Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances and regulations
prohibiting discrimination in the performance of this Interlocal Agreement. The Parties shall
not discriminated against a person to be served or applicant for employment because of race,
color, religion, national origin, age, sex, disability that is unrelated to a individual’s ability to
perform the duties of a particular job or position, height, weight, or marital status. Breach of
this section shall be regarded as a material breech of this interlocal agreement.

This interlocal agreement shall become effective upon the execution hereof by the parties hereto.



SIGNATURES

KALAMAZOO COUNTY BOARD CHAIR:

Tracy Hall

ASSESSING DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVES:

ALAMO TOWNSHIP

ALAMO TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

BRADY TOWNSHIP

BRADY TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

CHARLESTON TOWNSHIP

CHARLESTON TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

CLIMAX TOWNSHIP

CLIMAX TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

COMSTOCK TOWNSHIP

COMSTOCK TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date



COOPER TOWNSHIP

COOPER TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP

KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP

OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

PAVILION TOWNSHIP

PAVILION TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

PRAIRIE RONDE TOWNSHIP

PRAIRIE RONDE TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

RICHLAND TOWNSHIP

RICHLAND TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

ROSS TOWNSHIP

ROSS TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date

SCHOOLCRAFT TOWNSHIP

SCHOOLCRAFT TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE Date



TEXAS TOWNSHIP

TEXAS TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

WAKESHMA TOWNSHIP

WAKESHMA TOWNSHIP REPRESENTATIVE

GALESBURG CITY

GALESBURG CITY REPRESENTATIVE

KALAMAZQOO CITY

Date

Date

KALAMAZOOQ CITY REPRESENTATIVE

PARCHMENT CITY

Date

PARCHMENT CITY REPRESENTATIVE

PORTAGE CITY

Date

PORTAGE CITY REPRESENTATIVE

DESIGNATED COUNTY ASSESSOR

Date

AARON POWERS

Date

DATE



ADDENDUM

2020 Ad Valorem and Special Acts SEV by Unit by Class

. s | | . Total  Total
Unit ﬁg(igg_lgural' Commercial _Industrial | Restidential 1 Real Personal Real & Personal

AamoTwp. 15976300 11,027,100 3,856,400 152,107,300 182,967,100 8,111,500 191,078,600

Brady Twp. 29263900 3763200  1.462,300 196973300 231,462,700 9,886,100 241,348,800

Charleston Twp. 14,194,900 2204900 20,836,500 76266800 113,503,100 14,259,300 127,762,400
ClmaxTwp. 47,052,700 2,541,200 9400 65921,000 115524300 5614200 121138500
Comstock Twp. 11,312,300 172,332,500 63,189,400 417,456,849 664,291049 76037458 741,228,507

Cooper Twp. 10,668,831 27,230,800 7,418,150 320595297 365913078 11,658,119 377,571,197

Kalamazoo Twp. 96,400 96,866,300  15989,700 421,489,700 534,442,100  22,728000 557,170,100

‘Oshtemo Twp. 6,043,100 381,053,600 22,328,000  640277,100  1,049.701,800  75.887,300 1,125,589, 100
Pavilion Twp. 28,659,400 12,482,800  15459,500 227,707,200 = 284,308,900 11,553,400 295,862,300

Prairie Ronde Twp. 47,321,400 486500 995500 104299700 153103100 7040300 160,143,400

Richland Twp. 21,671,700 35,181,900 20,876,000 437,360,750 = 515,090,350 15726400 530,816,750

Ross Twp. 9,117,500 18,013,100  1,927.400 440,838,300 469,896,300 13,117,100 483,013,400

Schoolcraft Twp. 30,414,900 35,026,400 27,660,800 317,556,150 410,658,250 30,771,100 441429350

Texas Twp. 11,650,900 94,261,300 850,000 970,174,400 1,076,936,600 | 22,102,200  1,099,038,800

Wakeshma Twp. 50,067,]99_”_;_ 295,400 5900 35348200 85716600 28498900 114,215,500

GalesburgCity 0 8813800 1408200 22408900 32,630,900 3,860,300 36491200

KalamazooCity =~ 0 667,577,900 108,259,200 1,121,768929  1,897,606,029 173,143,700 2,070,749,729

Parchment City 0 7,966,200 2,309,000 36,548,500 46,823,700 1,912,800 48,736,500

Portage City 7,723,600 750,787,200 345490100 1588683200  2,602,684.100 148307,600 2,841,081.700

Total 341,234,931 2,327,912,100 660,331,450 7.593,781,675 10923260056 681205777 11604465833

Number of Ad Valorem and Specnal Acts Parcels by Local Unit by Class

Unit ‘A_gﬂijggwlmtyfgmlm'm66rﬁme‘rc_;_i_§l Industrial Regtjdential N_ﬁ__;_iF’MéFsonai ~ Total

T ,' T e e e
e —5 e B ﬂ

1
41 | 1

43 183

878
i
427 a 72 s VSV SIS W - S SE— - i ar A A A SRR

Kalamazoo Twp.
I OShtem o A AR A A A A A AR A Al A e
Paviion

Schooleraft 204
Texas e R — - . S PPTUREFURPRSPIFPRFRPPIVIVE SPIVEPFRISPFPPIRR

1o 67
2694 24967
70 N
1,899 | 19444

GalesbugCity 0 95

KalamazooCity 0 2
Parchment City
PortageCity




List of properties deemed “unique, complex or high value” by the
respective Assessing Districts:

Comstock Township: STS Hydropower LTD 07-22-130-313
(State Assessed) 07-22-251-020

07-22-400-011

07-23-360-012

07-23-430-014

Grand Trunk Railroad 07-31-380-010

(State Assessed)
Kalamazoo Township: Dev 4201 Main St. LLC  06-18-330-052
BRI-VAL LLC 06-18-415-016
Schoolcraft Township: Paper City Development 14-13-470-036
14-13-470-038
Texas Township: PNC Bank 09-02-105-015

Consumers Credit Union 09-02-305-008

Portage City: Pfizer 10-00014-001-C
10-00014-008-A
10-00014-009-A
10-00014-010-O



Property Assessing Reform Process

AMAR is Conducted*

S\

Local unit is non-compliant? Local unit is compliant
p

|
. v
Local Unit Submits CAP or Challenges Audit Results? End Process Next Audit in 5 Years
|
|

v
Follow Up Review is Conducted

— N

Fail — 3 Options® Pass — End Process Next Audit in 5 Years

1. Local Unit hires new assessor must be MMAO or MAAO
2. STCAssumes Jurisdiction

a) STCuses contractors to make corrections

b) Local Unit hires individual to make corrections
3. Local Unit moves to Designated Assessor °

— O\

Fail - Move to Designated Assessor Process* Pass — End Process Next Audit in 5 Years

! Every 5 years. New AMAR will have 2 sections: Technical (items from statute) and Assessment Roll Analysis
2 Any item that is a no in the Assessment Roll Analysis results in non-compliance

3 Form for Audit challenge will be developed. AMAR Sample CAP will be released

* A local unit may follow the process to challenge the audit results

® Local units that move to DA will remain in that process for 5 years. DA is the AOR for the Local Unit



5102 (Rev. 01-19)

STATE OF MICHIGAN

GRETCHEN WHITMER DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY RACHAEL EUBANKS
GOVERNOR LANSING STATE TREASURER
Bulletin 8 of 2020
June 9, 2020
Audit Process and Designated Assessor
TO: Assessors and Equalization Directors
FROM: State Tax Commission

SUBJECT: Overview of Audit Process and Designated Assessor under Public Act 660 of 2018

Public Act 660 of 2018 was approved by Governor Snyder on December 28, 2018 and amended the
General Property Tax Act to provide a statutory framework to ensure proper assessing in order to
guarantee the highest quality assessments for taxpayers as well as local units. The Act defines the
requirements for substantial compliance with the General Property Tax Act, provides timelines for
audits and follow-up audits, and details a process for bringing a local unit into compliance if they
remain non-compliant after a follow-up review. The Designated Assessor is an integral part of that
process.

Audit Process Overview

The Commission will conduct an audit of assessment practices according to a published schedule. If
the assessing district (City, Township or Joint Assessing Authority) is determined to be in substantial
compliance, the audit process for that five-year cycle is complete and the assessing district is not
required to take any additional action.

If the State Tax Commission determines that an assessing district is not in substantial compliance with
the General Property Tax Act, the Commission will provide the assessing district with a notice of
noncompliance, including the reasons the assessing district is not in substantial compliance.

The assessing district must either appeal the audit determination by filing a written petition to be
developed by the State Tax Commission or they must submit a corrective action plan to be approved
by the State Tax Commission. “Corrective action plan” is defined in P.A. 660 of 2018 as “a plan
developed by an assessing district that specifically indicates how the assessing district will achieve
substantial compliance . . . and when substantial compliance will be achieved.” (Emphasis added).
Additional mformation related to the corrective action plan and petition to challenge the audit results
will be provided by the State Tax Commission in separate guidance.

In the event the Commission conducts a follow-up review and the assessing district is not in substantial
compliance after the follow-up review, the assessing district has three options:

1. The assessing district may hire a new Michigan Advanced Assessing Officer (MAAO) or
Michigan Master Assessor Officer MMAO),

www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission



Page 2

2. The State Tax Commission assumes jurisdiction over the assessment roll in order to bring
the roll into substantial compliance, or,
3. The local unit may move directly to the designated assessor.

Regardless of which option is selected, the Commission will conduct a second follow-up review to
determine if the assessment roll is in substantial compliance. If, after the second follow-up review the
assessing district continues to be in noncompliance, the local unit will move directly to the Designated
Assessor process.

As defined in statute substantial compliance “means that any identified deficiencies do not pose a
significant risk that the assessing district is unable to perform the assessment function in conformity
with the state constitution and state statute.”

As defined in statute noncompliance “means that the identified deficiencies, taken together, pose a
significant risk that the assessing district is unable to perform the assessing function in conformity with
the state constitution and state statute.”

At the December 17, 2019 State Tax Commission meeting, the Commission determined “substantial
compliance” to mean that the local unit 1) has properly calculated and appropriately documented
Economic Condition Factors; 2) has properly calculated and appropriately documented land value
determinations; and 3) less than 1% of the record cards are on override and less than 1% of the record
cards reflect flat land values. If any of the requirements associated with those items are not met, the
local unit will be considered noncompliant and the notice of noncompliance will be issued.

Once the audit is complete, if an assessing district is notified that it has fallen out of substantial
compliance prior to the next audit, the State Tax Commission may require the assessing district to
contract with the Designated Assessor to serve as their assessor of record. If the assessing district is
notified that it has fallen out of substantial compliance more than four years after the initial finding of
substantial compliance, then the regular audit process will be followed.

What is the Designated Assessor?

The Designated Assessor is part of a process to ensure that local units are in compliance with the
statutory provisions of the General Property Tax Act, meaning that local units are meeting minimum
assessing requirements.

The Designated Assessor is the individual selected and agreed to by the County Board of
Commissioners and a majority of the assessing districts within that county, subject to final approval of
the State Tax Commission.

The Designated Assessor serves as the assessor of record and assumes all duties and responsibilities as
the assessor of record for an assessing district that is determined to be non-compliant with an audit.

The Designated Assessor is not an automatic requirement for Countywide assessing or for the County
Equalization Director to take over as the assessor for local units. While the County can be named the
Designated Assessor, it is not an automatic designation as the Designated Assessor as this is
determined by the approved interlocal agreement.



Page 3

Who may be the Designated Assessor?

Each Assessing District within each County is required to have an assessor of record with a
certification level that meets the valuation requirements set forth by the State Tax Commission.
Township and City certification levels are adjusted annually and approved by the STC. The individual
who will serve as the county’s Designated Assessor must be in good standing and be certified, at least,
at the highest level required within the County. If the County contains an Assessing District that
requires a Michigan Master Assessing Officer (MMAO), the Designated Assessor must then also be
certified at the MMAQO level. If the County only contains Assessing Districts that require a Michigan
Advanced Assessing Officer (MAAO) certification, or a lower certification, the Designated Assessor
may be certified at the level of MAAO. A Michigan Certified Assessing Officer (MCAQ) may not
serve as the Designated Assessor. As part of the annual certification level process, the Commission
will review all MAAO Designated Assessors to ensure compliance with certification level
requirements. Additionally, the STC will examine and determine a specific process, on a case by case
basis, any specific instance of a MAAO that has been assigned multiple units that may place them
beyond the certification requirements of a MAAO.

Notification of Selected Designated Assessor

P.A. 660 of 2018 requires that each county notify the State Tax Commission, no later than December
31, 2020, of the individual that will serve as the county’s Designated Assessor. In addition, the county
must provide the State Tax Commission with the interlocal agreement executed by the County Board
of Commissioners, a majority of the assessing districts within that county, and the proposed
Designated Assessor for the county. The interlocal agreement must provide enough detail regarding the
assessment responsibilities for the designated assessor. The Commission expects the interlocal
agreement will include, but not be limited to, the following:

e Information related to the scope of services being provided by the Designated Assessor,
including preparation of assessment rolls, timeline for delivery of documents and execution
of forms, attendance at Boards of Review meetings, duties and responsibilities related to
property tax appeals, both Small Claims and Entire Tribunal, filed with the Michigan Tax
Tribunal, responsibility to meet with local unit officials, and obligations of local unit
assessing staff members.

e Duties and responsibilities for each local unit within the County, including providing the
Designated Assessor with reasonable access to records, documents and information.

¢ Details relating to cost and compensation for overseeing and administering the annual
assessment and operating the assessing office, including payment terms and cost
reimbursement.

Failure to timely notify the State Tax Commission of the county’s Designated Assessor will result in
the State Tax Commission selecting a Designated Assessor for the county.

If the State Tax Commission determines that an individual named as the Designated Assessor is
capable of ensuring that the assessing districts within the county will achieve and maintain substantial



Page 4

compliance, the Commission shall approve that individual as the County’s Designated Assessor. Once
approved, the designation will not be revoked for at least five years from the approval date.

If the State Tax Commission is unable to approve the individual identified as the county’s Designated
Assessor because the Commission determines that the proposed Designated Assessor is not capable of
ensuring that the assessing districts will achieve and maintain substantial compliance, the county must
submit a new Designated Assessor candidate and accompanying interlocal agreement within sixty days
of the Commission’s determination. The county will be required to repeat the process until a
satisfactory Designated Assessor can be approved. The State Tax Commission will appoint an
individual to serve as the county’s temporary Designated Assessor during this period.

The State Tax Commission will develop a form to be utilized by the County Equalization Departments
to notify the Commission of the proposed Designated Assessor. The Designated Assessor form will be
available by August 18, 2020. The form must be submitted to the Commission no later than December
31, 2020.

Designated Assessor Term

Once an assessing district is under contract with a Designated Assessor, the Designated Assessor will
remain in place for a minimum of five years. Statute does provide for a local unit to petition the
Commission to end the contract after the Designated Assessor has been in place for 3 years.

The Commission shall approve termination of a contract if it is determined that the assessing district
can achieve and maintain substantial compliance with the General Property Tax Act using a different
assessor of record other than the Designated Assessor.

The State Tax Commission may revoke the Designated Assessor and provide for an interim designated
assessor if:

—

The Designated Assessor dies or becomes incapacitated

2. The Designated Assessor’s employment status materially changes or

The Designated Assessor is not capable of ensuring that the assessing district is able to
achieve and maintain substantial compliance with MCL 211.10g.

W

The interim Designated Assessor will remain in place until a new Designated Assessor can be selected
following the interlocal agreement process.

It the Designated Assessor is serving as an assessor of record for an assessing district that is found to
be in noncompliance, the State Tax Commission will appoint an individual to serve as the county’s
temporary Designated Assessor. The county will utilize the normal process to select and notify the
Commission of the new Designated Assessor.

Designated Assessor Costs

The Designated Assessor is permitted to charge an assessing district for the reasonable costs incurred
in serving as the assessing district’s assessor of record, including, but not limited to, the costs of
overseeing and administering the annual assessment, preparing and defending the assessment roll, and
operating the assessing office. The assessing district is required to pay these costs in accordance with



Page 5

the interlocal agreement. The costs and fees agreed to by the county, assessing districts and the
Designated Assessor is a local issue and will vary statewide.

The Commission will develop guidelines as required by statute for any local unit to protest charges by
the Designated Assessor.

Audit Preparation

While the audit process outlined in P.A. 660 of 2018 will not commence until 2022, assessing districts
can prepare for these audits by meeting the requirements of the current Audit of Minimum Assessing
Requirements (AMAR) and the “Supervising Preparation of the Assessment Roll”, as those
requirements existed on October 1, 2018. Additionally, assessing districts should employ an assessor
certified by the State Tax Commission at the proper certification level based on the valuation
requirements, adjusted annually, set forth by the State Tax Commission. Additional information about
the AMAR, including the AMAR Review Sheet, and certification levels, are available on the State Tax
Commission website (www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission).



